
     COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
 

 

January 10, 2024 
7:00 PM at City of Taylor Mill Municipal Building (5225 Taylor Mill Road) 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Commissioner Kreimborg 
 

MINUTES: Approval of Minutes from December 13, 2023, Commission Meeting 

   

GUESTS: FY23 Audit Presentation; Dean Dorton, formerly VonLehman 

 

RESIDENT COMMENTS:  Residents shall sign in before the meeting and will have five (5) minutes to 

address the commission. 
 

LEGISLATION:   
Ordinance 394 - Approving Financing and General Obligation Lease Agreement for the Bonding of Firehouse 

Project 

Resolution 378 - Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with KLC for bonding purposes 

Municipal Order 150 - Promoting Sgt. Mathew Hicks to Assistant Chief, TMPD 

Municipal Order 151 - Promoting Ptl. Jordan Norris to Sergeant, TMPD 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   
  

NEW BUSINESS:  
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  City Administrator  Legal Counsel  

     City Treasurer   Parks and Recreation 
     Engineering   Police 
     Fire    Public Works 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: The next Caucus Meeting is on 01/31/2024 at 10 AM 

The next Commission Meeting is on 02/14/2024 at 7 PM 
    The City Offices will close on January 15th in honor of Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
    

   



 

 

MINUTES 



1 
 

Min121323 

 

City of Taylor Mill 

COMMISSION MEETING 

Wednesday, December 13, 2023 

 

CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME: 

Mayor Pro Tem Mark Kreimborg called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and welcomed 

those in attendance. Commissioner Caroline Braden, Commissioner Mark Kreimborg, 

Commissioner Ed Kuehne, Commissioner Dan Murray, City Administrative Officer Brian Haney, 

and City Attorney Sebastian Torres were in attendance. Mayor Daniel L. Bell was absent. 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Commissioner Braden led the invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

November 8, 2023, Commission Meeting 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Kreimborg called for a motion to approve the November 8, 2023, 

Commission Meeting Minutes. Commissioner Murray so moved, with a second from 

Commissioner Kuehne. The Commission approved by unanimous voice call vote.  

MOTION PASSED 

November 22, 2023, Caucus Meeting 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Kreimborg called for a motion to approve the November 22, 2023, Caucus 

Meeting Minutes. Commissioner Kuehne so moved, with a second from Commissioner Braden. 

The Commission approved by unanimous voice call vote.  

MOTION PASSED 

November 28, 2023, Special Commission Meeting 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Kreimborg called for a motion to approve the November 28, 2023, Special 

Commission Meeting Minutes. Commissioner Braden so moved, with a second from 

Commissioner Kuehne. The Commission approved by unanimous voice call vote.  

MOTION PASSED 

  



2 
 

GUESTS:   

Commissioner Kreimborg invited the public to speak. 

Winifred Harney of 691 Arrowwood Circle addressed the Commission. 

 

LEGISLATION:   

 

Municipal Order 147 

 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY PROMOTING ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF GENERAL FERNBACH TO THE 

RANK OF CHIEF IN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL ON 

DECEMBER 1, 2023 

City Attorney Sebastian Torres provided the reading of Municipal Order 147 for the 

promotion of General Fernbach to the position of Fire Chief. Commissioner Kreimborg called for 

a motion to approve the promotion of General Fernbach to Fire Chief. Commissioner Murray made 

a motion with a second from Commissioner Kuehne. The Commission approved by unanimous 

vote. 

 

MOTION PASSED 

 

Municipal Order 148 

 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY PROMOTING JERRY JUMP TO THE RANK OF DIRECTOR IN THE PUBLIC 

WORKS DEPARTMENT FOR THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL ON DECEMBER 1, 2023 

 

City Attorney Sebastian Torres provided the reading of Municipal Order 148 for the 

promotion of Jerry Jump to the position of Public Works Director. Commissioner Kreimborg 

called for a motion to approve the promotion of Jerry Jump to the position of Public Works 

Director. Commissioner Braden made a motion with a second from Commissioner Murray. The 

Commission approved by unanimous vote. 

 

MOTION PASSED 

 

Municipal Order 149 

 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY PROMOTING FIREFIGHTER/PARAMEDIC JEFFERY ALLEN NEAL, JR. TO 

A LIEUTENANT IN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL 

City Attorney Sebastian Torres provided the reading of Municipal Order 149 for the 

promotion of Jeffery Allen Neal, Jr. to the position of Lieutenant in the Fire Department. 

Commissioner Kreimborg called for a motion to approve the promotion of Jeffery Neal, Jr. to the 



3 
 

position of Lieutenant. Commissioner Murray made a motion with a second from Commissioner 

Kuehne. The Commission approved by unanimous vote. 

 

MOTION PASSED 

 

Municipal Order 150 

 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY PROMOTING FIREFIGHTER/PARAMEDIC KILEY GARLAND FROM A 

PART-TIME TO FULL-TIME FIRE IN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR THE CITY OF 

TAYLOR MILL 

City Attorney Sebastian Torres provided the reading of Municipal Order 150 for the 

promotion of Firefighter/Paramedic Kiley Garland from part-time to full-time in the Fire 

Department. Mayor Pro Tem Kreimborg called for a motion to approve the promotion of Kiley 

Garland from part-time to full-time. Commissioner Murray made a motion with a second from 

Commissioner Braden. The Commission approved by unanimous vote. 

 

MOTION PASSED 

 

 

Municipal Order 151 

 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY APPOINTING BOB FULTZ AS PATROL OFFICER IN THE POLICE 

DEPARTMENT FOR THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL 

 

City Attorney Sebastian Torres provided the reading of Municipal Order 151 for the 

promotion of hiring of Officer Bob Fultz as a full-time patrol officer. Mayor Pro Tem Kreimborg 

called for a motion to approve the hiring of Bob Fultz as a full-time patrol officer. Commissioner 

Braden made a motion with a second from Commissioner Kuehne. The Commission approved by 

unanimous vote. 

 

MOTION PASSED 

Municipal Order 152 

 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY APPOINTING STEVE ROBINSON AS PATROL OFFICER IN THE POLICE 

DEPARTMENT FOR THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL 

 

City Attorney Sebastian Torres provided the reading of Municipal Order 152 for the 

promotion of hiring of Officer Steve Robinson as a full-time patrol officer. Mayor Pro Tem 

Kreimborg called for a motion to approve the hiring of Steve Robinson as a full-time patrol officer. 

Commissioner Kuehne made a motion with a second from Commissioner Murray. The 

Commission approved by unanimous vote. 

 

MOTION PASSED 



4 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 The Commission reviewed reports from the following staff members: City Administrator, 

Treasurer, Engineering, Fire/EMS, Legal Counsel, Parks and Recreation, Public Works, and 

Police.  

 

CAO Brian Haney requested the Commission to approve the SD1 Cost Share Program cost 

for Margaret Freeman of 718 Vincent Drive in the amount of $1,925.80. Mayor Pro Tem 

Kreimborg called for a motion to approve the amount of $1,925.80 for the SD1 Cost Share Program 

for Margaret Freeman. Commissioner Braden so moved, with a second from Commissioner 

Murray. The Clerk called the roll. The Commission approved by unanimous vote.  

MOTION PASSED 

 

CAO Brian Haney requested the Commission to approve the contracts for Hub & Weber 

and for Mark Spaulding Construction for the Bid Ready Construction of the firehouse. Mayor Pro 

Tem Kreimborg called for the approval of the Mark Spaulding Construction contract in the amount 

of $164,250.00. Commissioner Murray so moved, with a second from Commissioner Braden. The 

Clerk called the roll. The Commission approved by unanimous vote.  

MOTION PASSED 

Mayor Pro Tem Kreimborg called for the approval of Hub & Weber contract in the amount 

of $27,100.00 for the new firehouse project. Commissioner Braden so moved, with a second from 

Commissioner Murray. The Clerk called the roll. The Commission approved by unanimous vote.  

MOTION PASSED 

There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Kreimborg called for a motion to adjourn. 

Commissioner Braden so moved, with a second from Commissioner Murray to adjourn the 

meeting. The motion passed with the unanimous approval of the Commission, the time being 7:24 

p.m. 

                                                                                                                      MOTION PASSED 

The next Commission Meeting will be Wednesday, January 10, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. at the 

City of Taylor Mill Municipal Building located at 5225 Taylor Mill Road. 

APPROVED: 

 

______________________________ 

Daniel L. Bell, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

 

_________________________________ 

Kristy Webb, City Clerk  

Date: _____________________ 



 

 

LEGISLATION 



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY APPROVING 

A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF A PROJECT; PROVIDING 

FOR THE PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE LEASE; ESTABLISHING 

A SINKING FUND; AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF VARIOUS 

DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE LEASE. 

WHEREAS, as provided by Sections 65.940 to 65.956, inclusive, of the Kentucky Revised 

Statutes, the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky (the “Lessee”), has the power to enter into lease agreements with any 

person, with or without the option to purchase, in order to provide for the use of property for public 

purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Lessee has found and determined, and hereby further finds and determines, 

that the Lessee is in need of the Project, as defined in the hereinafter described Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the Lessee has found and determined, and hereby further finds and determines, 

that it will be in the best interests of the Lessee to enter into a Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) with 

the Kentucky Bond Corporation, a nonprofit corporation incorporated and existing under the laws of 

the Commonwealth of Kentucky (the “Lessor”), for the leasing by the Lessee from the Lessor of the 

Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Affirmation of Recitals. It is hereby found, determined, and declared that the 

facts, declarations, and definitions set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are all true and correct, 

and such facts, declarations, and definitions are hereby affirmed, adopted, and incorporated as a part 

of this Ordinance, and all acts described in the recitals of this Ordinance are hereby ratified. 

Section 2. Approval, Authorization, Necessity, and Purpose of the Lease. The Lessee 

hereby approves the Lease, in substantially the form presented to the Lessee. It is hereby found and 

determined that the Project identified in the Lease is property to be used for public purposes. It is 

hereby further found and determined that it is necessary and desirable and in the best interests of the 

Lessee to enter into the Lease for the purposes specified therein, and the execution and delivery of 

the Lease by the Lessee and all of the representations, certifications, and other matters contained in 

the documents to be executed and delivered in connection with the Lease, or as may be required by 

the Lessor before the delivery of the Lease, are hereby approved, ratified, and confirmed. The Mayor 

and the City Clerk of the Lessee are each hereby authorized to execute, in the name and on behalf of 

the Lessee, the Lease and any other documents, agreements, or certifications that may be necessary 

in order to accomplish the transaction contemplated by the Lease. 

Section 3. General Obligation Pledge. In accordance with the Constitution and laws of 

the Commonwealth of Kentucky, including, particularly, Sections 66.011 to 66.191, inclusive, of the 

Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended (the “General Obligation Act”), the obligation of the Lessee 

to pay the Lease Rental Payments under (and as defined in) the Lease shall constitute a full general 

obligation of the Lessee, and the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the Lessee are hereby pledged 

kwebb
Typewritten Text
394

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text



2 

for the prompt payment of such Lease Rental Payments. During the period the Lease is outstanding, 

there shall be and there hereby is levied, annually, on all taxable property in the Lessee, in addition 

to all other taxes, without limitation as to rate, a direct tax in an amount sufficient to pay such Lease 

Rental Payments as and when due and payable, it being hereby found and determined that the current 

tax rates of the Lessee are within all applicable limitations. The tax shall be, and hereby is, ordered 

to be computed, certified, levied, and extended upon the tax duplicate, and shall be collected by the 

same officers, in the same manner, and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of 

the years are certified, extended, and collected. The tax shall be placed before and in preference to 

all other items and for the full amount thereof; provided, however, that in each year, to the extent that 

any other lawfully available funds of the Lessee are available for the payment of such Lease Rental 

Payments and are appropriated for such purpose, the amount of such tax on all taxable property in the 

Lessee shall be reduced by the amount of such other funds so available and appropriated. 

Section 4. Establishment of Sinking Fund. There is hereby established a Sinking Fund 

for the Lessee (the “Sinking Fund”), which shall be continued and maintained as long as the Lease is 

outstanding. The funds derived from the tax levy required by Section 3 hereof and any other lawfully 

available funds of the Lessee shall be deposited into the Sinking Fund and, together with the interest 

collected on the same, are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest 

on all bonds issued by the Lessee under the General Obligation Act and all Tax-Supported Leases, 

as defined in the General Obligation Act, including the Lease, as and when the same become due and 

payable. The Lessee shall transfer the funds on deposit in the Sinking Fund to the Lessor at the times 

and in the amounts required by Section 9 of the Lease. 

Section 5. Severability. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this Ordinance shall 

be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the 

invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, or provision shall not affect any remaining 

sections, paragraphs, or provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 6. Open Meetings Compliance. The Lessee hereby finds and determines that all 

formal actions relating to the adoption of this Ordinance and the execution and delivery of the Lease 

were taken in open meetings of the Board of Commissioners of the Lessee, and that all deliberations 

of the Board of Commissioners of the Lessee and of its committees, if any, which resulted in such 

formal actions were held in meetings open to the public, in full compliance with all applicable legal 

requirements, including Sections 61.810 to 61.850, inclusive, of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 

Section 7. Conflicts. All prior ordinances, resolutions, or orders of the Lessee, or parts 

thereof, that conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby 

repealed, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail and be given effect. 

Section 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon the 

adoption and publication of a summary hereof, as provided by law. 

[Signature page to follow]



S-1 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO ORDINANCE

INTRODUCED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED, at a duly convened meeting of the Board 

of Commissioners of the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky held on _______________________, 20__, 

after first reading held on _______________________, 20__, signed by the Mayor, attested by the City 

Clerk, and filed and indexed as provided by law. 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY 

By:  

Mayor 

Attest:  

By:  

City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the 

City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky, and as City Clerk, I hereby further certify that the foregoing is a true, 

correct, and complete copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the City 

at a duly convened meeting held on ____________________, 20__, signed by the Mayor, and duly 

filed, recorded, and indexed in my office and now in full force and effect, and that all action taken 

by the City in connection with the Ordinance was in compliance with all applicable requirements of 

the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, all as appears from the official records of the City in 

my possession and under my control. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ___________________, 20__. 

City Clerk 

kwebb
Typewritten Text
Daniel L. Bell, Mayor

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text
Kristy Webb, City Clerk

kwebb
Typewritten Text



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE 

At meetings held on [First Reading Date], and [Adoption Date], the Board of 

Commissioners of the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky (referred to herein as the “Lessee”) adopted 

an ordinance (the “Ordinance”) titled as follows: 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY APPROVING 

A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF A PROJECT; PROVIDING 

FOR THE PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE LEASE; ESTABLISHING 

A SINKING FUND; AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF VARIOUS 

DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE LEASE. 

The Ordinance provides for the approval of a lease agreement (the “Lease”) to be entered 

into by the Lessee and the Kentucky Bond Corporation (the “Lessor”) for the purpose of financing 

certain public improvements for the Lessee. The Ordinance also contains provisions providing for 

(i) a general obligation pledge of the Lessee to levy and assess sufficient taxes to comply with its 

obligation to pay lease rental payments to the Lessor under the Lease, and (ii) the creation of a sinking 

fund to be pledged as further security for the payment of such lease rental payments and certain 

other obligations of the Lessee. As required by KRS Section 83A.060, the section of the Ordinance 

relating to the Lessee’s pledge to levy and assess a tax to pay the obligations under the Lease is set 

forth in its entirety: 

“Section 3. General Obligation Pledge. In accordance with the 

Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, including, particularly, 

Sections 66.011 to 66.191, inclusive, of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended 

(the “General Obligation Act”), the obligation of the Lessee to pay the Lease Rental 

Payments under (and as defined in) the Lease shall constitute a full general 

obligation of the Lessee, and the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the Lessee 

are hereby pledged for the prompt payment of such Lease Rental Payments. During 

the period the Lease is outstanding, there shall be and there hereby is levied, 

annually, on all taxable property in the Lessee, in addition to all other taxes, without 

limitation as to rate, a direct tax in an amount sufficient to pay such Lease Rental 

Payments as and when due and payable, it being hereby found and determined that 

the current tax rates of the Lessee are within all applicable limitations. The tax shall 

be, and hereby is, ordered to be computed, certified, levied, and extended upon the 

tax duplicate, and shall be collected by the same officers, in the same manner, and 

at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of the years are certified, 

extended, and collected. The tax shall be placed before and in preference to all other 

items and for the full amount thereof; provided, however, that in each year, to the 

extent that any other lawfully available funds of the Lessee are available for the 

payment of such Lease Rental Payments and are appropriated for such purpose, the 

amount of such tax on all taxable property in the Lessee shall be reduced by the 

amount of such other funds so available and appropriated.” 

The undersigned, as the City Clerk of the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky, hereby certifies 

that the Ordinance summarized herein was approved by the Board of Commissioners of the Lessee 

for first reading on [First Reading Date], and for second reading on [Adoption Date], and was 



further approved for publication following adoption, according to law. A complete copy of the 

Ordinance may be reviewed at the office of the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky. 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY 

By: /s/ Kristy Webb

City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned, an attorney licensed to practice law in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, 

hereby certifies that the foregoing Notice of Adoption and Summary of Ordinance of the City of 

Taylor Mill, Kentucky, was prepared by the undersigned and constitutes a general summary of the 

essential provisions of such Ordinance, reference to the full text of which is hereby made for a 

complete statement of its provisions and terms. 

/s/ Callie A. Kidwell, Esq. 

Dinsmore & Shohl LLP 

Louisville, Kentucky 



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY APPROVING 

AN INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY AND CERTAIN PUBLIC AGENCIES 

REGARDING THE KENTUCKY BOND CORPORATION. 

WHEREAS, certain public agencies in the Commonwealth of Kentucky have experienced 

and are continuing to experience difficulty in economically funding, financing, or refinancing various 

governmental purposes at reasonable costs; and 

WHEREAS, certain public agencies in the Commonwealth of Kentucky (each, a “Participant” 

and collectively, the “Participants”) have entered into, or will enter into, an Interlocal Cooperation 

Agreement dated as of May 1, 2010, attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement”), as authorized 

by Sections 65.210 to 65.300, inclusive, of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended (the “Interlocal 

Cooperation Act”), which authorizes public agencies in the Commonwealth of Kentucky to cooperate 

and act jointly in exercising any and all powers, privileges, and authority capable of exercise by such 

public agencies in their respective individual capacities; and 

WHEREAS, under and in accordance with the Agreement, the Participants established (i) the 

Kentucky League of Cities Interlocal Finance Program (the “Program”) to provide a vehicle for the 

funding, financing, and refinancing of various governmental purposes of the Participants, and (ii) a 

nonprofit corporation known as the Kentucky Bond Corporation (the “Corporation”) to administer 

and operate the Program and to issue obligations to provide funds for the Program, all in accordance 

with the Interlocal Cooperation Act; and 

WHEREAS, participation in the Program will benefit the public health, safety, and general 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky (the “City”); and 

WHEREAS, in order for the City to become a Participant in the Program, it must enter into 

the Agreement, as prescribed by Section 65.250 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended, which 

provided for the creation of the Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Affirmation of Preamble. The City hereby finds, determines, and declares that 

all statements of fact and definitions set forth in the preamble to this Resolution are true and correct 

in all respects, and such preamble is hereby incorporated into this Resolution by reference, as if set 

forth at length herein.  

Section 2. Purpose and Authorization. The City hereby finds, determines, and declares 

that entering into the Agreement and the issuance by the Corporation of the obligations described in 

the Agreement are in furtherance of the public purposes and functions of the City and will be in the 

best interest of the citizens of the City. Accordingly, the City is hereby expressly authorized to enter 

into the Agreement to become a Participant in the Program. 

Section 3. Approval of the Agreement. The Agreement by and between the City and the 

Participants is hereby expressly approved by the City in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A 

kwebb
Typewritten Text
378

kwebb
Typewritten Text



2 

attached hereto, which was approved by the Attorney General of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, 

as required by Section 65.260 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 

Section 4. Repeal of Conflicting Actions. All ordinances, resolutions, orders, and other 

legislative or administrative actions, or parts thereof, of the City that conflict with the provisions 

of this Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon the 

date of its passage. 

[Signature page to follow]



S-1 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO RESOLUTION

ENACTED AND ADOPTED at a duly convened meeting of the Board of Commissioners 

of the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky this ______________________, 20__. 

CITY OF TAYLOR MILL, KENTUCKY 

By:  

Mayor 

Attest: 

By: 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City 

of Taylor Mill, Kentucky, and as City Clerk, I further certify that the foregoing is a true, correct, and 

complete copy of a Resolution, as appears to me in the official records of the City, duly adopted by 

the Board of Commissioners of the City at a duly convened meeting held on ___________________, 

20__, signed by the Mayor and duly filed, recorded, and indexed in my office and now in full force 

and effect, and that all action taken by the City in connection with the Resolution was in compliance 

with all requirements of the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, all as appears from the official 

records of the City in my possession and under my control. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ___________________, 20__. 

City Clerk 

City Clerk 

kwebb
Typewritten Text
January 10

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text
24

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text
Daniel L. Bell, Mayor

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text
January 10

kwebb
Typewritten Text
24

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text
Kristy Webb, Clerk

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text

kwebb
Typewritten Text



MUNICIPAL ORDER NO. 150 (01/10/2024) 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY PROMOTING SERGEANT MATHEW HICKS TO THE RANK OF 

ASSISTANT POLICE CHIEF IN THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL POLICE DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 10, 2024. 

 WHEREAS there is a vacancy in the position of Assistant Police Chief; and 

 WHEREAS, the Taylor Mill City Commission, acknowledging Sergeant Mathew Hicks 

meets all qualifications for such a promotion, wishes to promote Sergeant Hicks to Assistant 

Police Chief. 

NOW THEREFORE: 

Section 1.0 Promotion 

 Sergeant Mathew Hicks is hereby promoted by the Taylor Mill City Commission to the 

rank of Assistant Police Chief, effective today, January 10, 2024. 

Section 2.0 Duties and Responsibilities 

 As Assistant Chief in the Taylor Mill Police Department, Mathew Hicks shall have all the 

duties and responsibilities imposed on him in that position by CAO Brian Haney and the Taylor 

Mill City Commission. 

Section 3.0 Compensation 

 The compensation of Mathew Hicks for his services as an Assistant Police Chief in the 

Taylor Mill Police Department shall be governed by his annual contract with the city, payable in 

26 equal installments in conformity with the payment schedule of the City for all other 

employees thereof, less all deductions required by law.  

Section 4.0  Effective Date 

 This Municipal Order shall be effective as soon as possible according to law. 

Signed and adopted this 10th day of January 2024 by the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky, 

Kenton County, Kentucky. 
 

 
           By: ______________________________ 

       Daniel L. Bell 

       Mayor of Taylor Mill 

 

Attest:___________________________ 

 KRISTY WEBB, City Clerk 
 

 Date:________________   



MUNICIPAL ORDER NO. 151 (01/10/2024) 

A MUNICIPAL ORDER OF THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL IN KENTON COUNTY, 

KENTUCKY PROMOTING PATROL OFFICER JORDAN NORRIS TO THE RANK OF 

SERGEANT IN THE CITY OF TAYLOR MILL POLICE DEPARTMENT EFFECTIVE 

JANUARY 10, 2024. 

 

 WHEREAS, there is a vacancy in the position of Sergeant; and 

 WHEREAS, the Taylor Mill City Commission, acknowledging Officer Jordan Norris 

meets all qualifications for such a promotion, wishes to promote Officer Jordan Norris to the 

position of Sergeant; 

NOW THEREFORE: 

Section 1.0 Promotion 

 Officer Joran Norris is hereby promoted by the Taylor Mill City Commission to the rank 

of Sergeant, effective today, January 10, 2024. 

Section 2.0 Duties and Responsibilities 

 As Sergeant in the Taylor Mill Police Department, Jordan Norris shall have all the duties 

and responsibilities imposed on him in that position by CAO Brian Haney and the Taylor Mill 

City Commission. 

Section 3.0 Compensation 

 The compensation of Jordan Norris for his services as a Sergeant in the Taylor Mill 

Police Department shall be $69,534.40 annually, payable in 26 equal installments in conformity 

with the payment schedule of the City for all other employees thereof, less all deductions 

required by law.   

Section 4.0  Effective Date 

 This Municipal Order shall be effective as soon as possible according to law. 

Signed and adopted this 10th day of January 2024 by the City of Taylor Mill, Kentucky, 

Kenton County, Kentucky. 

 
           By: ______________________________ 

       Daniel L. Bell 

       Mayor of Taylor Mill 

 

Attest:___________________________ 

 KRISTY WEBB, City Clerk 
 

 Date:________________ 



 

 

TREASURER 

REPORT 




































	2024.01.10 Agenda - January 2024
	MINUTES
	2023.12.13 Commission Meeting Minutes 13Dec2023
	LEGISLATION
	Ord 394 Approving Financing and General Obligation Lease Agreement for Bonding
	Resolution 378 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with KLC for bonding
	MO 150 Promoting Mathew Hicks to Assistant Police Chief
	MO 151 Promoting Jordan Norris to Sergeant
	Treasurer Report
	Treasurer Report - Jan 2024



